ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


A. 	 The Circuit Court erred in upholding the Order of the Insurance Commissioner 
because the Insurance Commissioner refused Lightner a hearing in violation of 
both State ex reI. CitiFinancial v. Madden and express statutory language 
requiring such a hearing, and because the Commissioner denied Lightner other 
crucial due process rights as well. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court erred in upholding the Order of the Insurance Commissioner 
denying Lightner relief on his Complaint before the Insurance Commissioner in 
violation of Madden, and W. Va. Code § 29A-5-4(g),(1)(3)-(6), because the Order 
violates constitutional provisions (due process) was made on unlawful procedures 
(inter alia, hearing denied), shows a clear error of law (it presumed, unrebuttably, 
that "approved" rates were reasonable), is clearly wrong (the challenged rates are 
incontrovertibly unreasonable), and was arbitrary and capricious (in view of all 
the foregoing and related matters). 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This administrative appeal from the Circuit Court of Kanawha County presents 

significant legal errors made below in upholding an Insurance Commission Order denying 

Appellant, Lightner, both a hearing and any relief on a Complaint he filed with the Commission 

per this Court's express direction in State ex rei. CitiFinancial v. Madden, Syl. Pt. 3,223 W.Va. 

229 (2008). Because the Commissioner denied Lightner a hearing, or even a facsimile of due 

process, in relation to his statutory claim that CitiFinancial, Inc. and Triton Insurance Company 

(hereinafter: "CitiFinancial") charged him unreasonable rates for insurance, the Circuit Court 

should be reversed. Moreover, since the decision of the Insurance Commissioner is clearly 

wrong, the reversal should come with directions to enter a new order in favor of Lightner 

allowing him to proceed to the damages phase of his statutory claim. 

The most crucial fact in the case is that CitiFinancial absolutely skinned Paul Lightner

and the West Virginians he seeks to represent-with its credit insurance product. CitiFinancial 

charged astronomical rates that reach beyond all reason and cannot qualify as "reasonable" as 
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required by West Virginia law, unless that law is interpreted out of existence. See W. Va. Code 

§ 33-6-9 and § 46A-3-109 of the West Virginia Consumer Credit and Protection Act. 

In light of this, the decision of the Insurance Commissioner to conclude that the rates are 

reasonable must be viewed as what it is: an attempt by the Commissioner to 1) accommodate its 

regulated party; 2) protect the Insurance Commissioner's turf from intrusion via a citizen 

complaint; and 3) Insulate from scrutiny the Insurance Commissioner's own bureaucratic failure 

in allowing West Virginians to be fleeced on a massive scale. A review of the rates about which 

Lightner complained makes the point and his factual presentation will begin there. 

A. 	 CitiFinancial's rates were unreasonable; indeed, CitiFinancial's rates 
were patently excessive and unconscionable. 

The Insurance Code, the attendant regulations, and general insurance industry standards 

and practices require consideration of an insurer's loss experience and loss ratios in determining 

the reasonableness of credit insurance rates. 1 A "loss ratio" is the relationship between 

premiums charged and claims paid plus expenses. Importantly, an insurance company can make 

money even a loss ratio of 100% (or somewhat more), since the company enjoys the use of the 

premiums to invest safely and diversely in the meantime. 

As a minimum benchmark, both the regulations and industry standards require credit 

insurance rates to result in 50% or greater loss ratios - that is the bare minimum, 60% is a more 

commonly used benchmark. See, 114 C.S.R. § 61-6.2 (credit property 60%); NAIC Model 

Laws, Regulations & Guidelines §§ 365-1-7 (credit property 60%) (A-90); id. § 370-1-8 (credit 

involuntary unemployment 60%) (A-91). In other words, premiums expected to result in loss 

See, e.g., W.VA. CODE §§ 33-6-9; 33-20-3(b); 46A-3-109, § 33-20-3(a) ("Due consideration 
shall be given to past and prospective loss experience within and outside this state ...."); 114 
C.S.R. § 61-6.2 (credit property); NAIC Model Laws, Regulations & Guidelines §§ 365-1-7; 
370-1-8 (credit property and credit involuntary unemployment). (A-90 & A-91) 

2 
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ratios below 50% indicate that the premium charges are excessive and the rates unreasonable. 

As a minimum benchmark, both regulations and, where they do not explicitly reach, industry 

standards require 50% or 60% benchmarks; indeed, the Commissioner's Order does not disagree. 

Even at the permissible loss ratios (i.e., 50-60%), these credit insurance products yield enormous 

profits. To the extent Lightner can determine, the Insurance Commissioner of this State has 

never before approved a credit insurance rate known or projected to result in a loss ratio below 

50%. But, in contrast to the permissible loss ratios established by law and industry standards, 

CitiFinancial's internally reported annual loss ratios on its West Virginia credit property and 

credit involuntary unemployment lines never once approached that threshold. In fact, 

CitiFinancial's loss ratios averaged only 25.6% (credit property) and 15.8% (credit involuntary 

unemployment) annually for the period 1994-2006. Petition at 5 & Exs. I & J (A-585, 752-789, 

711). By comparison, slot machines in West Virginia are required to return a minimum of 80% 

of every dollar bet, and the average at West Virginia casinos is around 90%? A casino operator 

running a machine that paid like these insurance products would go to jail, with few questions 

asked. 

According to West Virginia regulations and industry standards, CitiFinancial should have 

charges rates that resulted in loss ratios of 60% or more of what it collects on these products. 

Yet the annual averages above show that CitiFinancial such high rates that it paid out on average 

only $25.60 in loss claims on its credit property lines for a decade - between 1994 and 2003. At 

that point, CitiFinancial claims, it quit issuing such policies (after federal regulatory activity). 

2 For the one-year period from July 1,2010 through June 30, 2011 the average return on VLT's 
was: 89.64% at Mountaineer Park, 90.81 % at Tri-State Park, 89.81% at Wheeling Island and 
89.75% at Charles Town Races. [http://www.an1ericancasinoguide.comlslot-machine-payback
statistics.html#W est-Virginia]. 
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Even worse, for every $100.00 collected on its credit involuntary unemployment lines 

between 1994 and 2006, CitiFinancial paid out on average only $15.80. These rates are beyond 

the pale by any conceivable standard and the Insurance Commissioner's decision to retroactively 

approve of them can only beg the question - at what point would they have been disapproved? 

Would five percent loss ratios have been disapproved? One percent? These figures, prosaic on 

the page, represent highway robbery in the insurance industry with tangible results felt on a 

massive scale by the poorest, most vulnerable citizens of West Virginia. 

Despite these results, CitiFinancial, year after year, told the Commissioner in its rate 

submissions that it "projected" a 50% or 51 % loss ratio on its credit property and credit 

involuntary unemployment insurance policies even though it continued to charge the same, or 

actuarially equivalent, rates. These repeated representation that the rates would be within the 

standard provide additional proof that even CitiFinancial knows that loss ratios of 15-25% could 

not be put past anyone. E.g., Petition at Exs. K, L, M (A-805, 821, 825, 828, 869). 

The Commissioner requires insurers to submit historical loss-ratio data and loss-ratio 

projections along with credit insurance rate submissions. See, 114 C.S.R. § 67-1 et seq. (since 

repealed) (codifying the Commissioner's ruling and accompanying forms from Informational 

Letter No. 29 (Nov. 1984.The required forms specifically call for this information. See 114 

C.S.R. § 67-3 Appendices F and G (pCA-R-2004 and PCA-F-2004); see also, Informational 

Letter No. 29 (attaching Forms PCPI-R-81, PCA-R-84, and PCA-F-81) (A-497-506). But 

instead of making full disclosures as required, CitiFinancial hoodwinked the Commissioner 

during the initial application process by using the designations "new program" and "N/A" where 

the Commissioner's forms called for loss-ratio information. Worse yet, CitiFinancial presented 

bogus loss-ratio projections based on irrelevant, dissimilar data rather than candid projections 
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based on its own historical loss experience, including the experience it had year after year raking 

in money from West Virginians. See, Affidavit of Lightner's actuarial expert, Michael L. 

Scruggs (A-507-511). In short, CitiFinancial concealed its ongoing bonanza from the 

Commissioner in order to obtain continuing approval of its exorbitant rates. 

Had CitiFinancial instead disclosed its loss experience as required, the Commissioner 

would have disapproved the rates. Although the denial of a hearing prevented fonner Insurance 

Commissioner Hanley Clark from testifying in this case, he explains in an affidavit that his office 

was duped by CitiFinancial's misleading rate filings--the very rate filings at issue here: "If I had 

known,. during my tenure at the Office of the Insurance Commissioner, that the historical loss 

ratios for the subject credit insurance lines were as set out above, I would have disapproved the 

rates and required support for such rates." Affidavit of Hanley C. Clark at ~ H (A-82-89). 

Lightner uncovered this scandal and brought it to the attention of the Circuit Court of 

Marshall County. At the direction of this Court, Lightner brought his claims to the Insurance 

Commissioner. He showed with detailed and convincing evidence how CitiFinancial swindled 

him and his fellow West Virginians out of millions of dollars in premiums at the patently 

unreasonable, indeed sky-high and unconscionable, rates described above. The situation called 

for the return of the ill-gotten money from CitiFinancial and imposition of proper penalties to 

prevent any attempt by carriers to fly beneath the radar like this again. 

In the face of this wealth of evidence, which CitiFinancial never refuted, the Office of the 

Insurance Commissioner stood shoulder to shoulder with the insurance company and acted 

against the interests of citizens to protect its turf throughout the process. Rather than appointing 

an independent hearings examiner, swearing in witnesses, taking evidence, hearing argument, 

and deciding whether CitiFinancial' s rates were reasonable or not, as the Insurance Code and this 
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Court's CitiFinancial decision requires, the Insurance Commissioner turned a deaf ear to 

Lightner's complaint and West Virginia law. In deciding that the approval of the rates by the 

Commissioner, without more (and without regard to the applicant's misrepresentations in the 

application process), makes the rates reasonable, the Commissioner winked at CitiFinancial's 

fraud and its windfall gains - and ignored this Court's determination that any such presumption 

is rebuttable. CitiFinancial at SyI. Pt. 4; cf Commissioner's Order at 12 (A-33). 

The Order of the Insurance Commissioner in this matter, though fifteen pages long, never 

articulates any basis to find these extraordinarily high rates "reasonable" except in a single 

conclusory assertion. Id. at 14 (A-35). No explanation why is ever given. In fact, the Order 

spends virtually its entire length explaining that the Insurance Commissioner allowed the rates to 

be charged and that they must therefore be reasonable (or else the Insurance Commissioner 

might have egg on its face). See, e.g., id. at 12 (A-33). 

The Order deals with Lightner's weighty evidence of unreasonableness by simply 

speculating that other evidence, not of record, might contradict it. E.g., id. at ~ 12, 16, 20 

(claiming that the CitiFinancial filings are "very much in line" with other filings never seen, 

produced, or identified in the administrative record) (A-27-29). The Order repeatedly states that 

the obviously confiscatory ratios and premiums "may" be explained by some factor (without any 

showing that factor is actually in play) or that these astonishing over-reaches by CitiFinancial are 

justified because Lightner's contradictory data is "of limited use." Id. at 6 (A-27). But nowhere 

is there any articulation of how such extraordinarily low ratios actually were reasonable for West 

Virginia, as opposed to speCUlation that they could have been, somehow. 

Moreover, the Commissioner's Order is heavily cribbed from an actuarial report, 

apparently obtained ex parte by the Commissioner that utterly fails to support the Insurance 
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Commissioner's decision. Hause Actuarial Solutions Report (A-516). The Report never says 

that any rate challenged by Lightner was reasonable, though the Commissioner, and later the 

Circuit Court, cited it as though it did. The Report describes virtually every insurance company 

filing objected to by Lightner as "incomplete." For example, on the Involuntary Unemployment 

Filing, it states: 

The calculation of the claim incidence rate actually used ... and how the 'first 
payment rate' relates to the incidence rate ... was not included 

the actual continuance of unemployment that would give rise to claim severity 
was not provided. 

no justification was provided for other expense components 

I did not review the investment income derivation in any detail, and I have formed 
no opinion as to its appropriateness 

if the coverage is non-standard, either an 'actuarial equivalence' to published rate 
must be established or a minimum anticipated loss ratio of 40-60% must be 
certified" [note: this never happened] 

Id. at 2-4 (A-517-519). The Commissioner's expert never says the rates for Involuntary 

Unemployment Insurance were reasonable. Id 

In regard to another Involuntary Unemployment filing, the Commissioner's expert Report 

says: 

This filing is complete to the extent that it [includes something] 


No claim cost derivation or experience under the existing single premlum 

program was provided. 


I did not review the investment income derivation in any detail, and I have formed 

no opinion as to its appropriateness 


if the coverage is non-standard, either an 'actuarial equivalence' to published rate 

must be established or a minimum anticipated loss ratio of 40-60% must be 

certified" [note: again, this never happened] 
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Id. at 5 (A-520) (emphasis supplied). The Commissioner's expert never says the rates for that 

filing were reasonable. 

Regarding a Loss of Income and Family Leave Insurance Filing, the Commissioner's 

expert said: 

This filing is somewhat complete (I) 

The calculation of the claim incidence rate actually used . . . and how the 'first 
payment rate' relates to the incidence rate ... was not included 

the actual continuance of unemployment that would give rise to claim severity 
was not provided. 

Derivation of the actual rates is described, but not in numerical detail [note: this 
report is from an actuary]. 

The family leave premium Was justified by way ofa competitor's rate only." 
the Actuarial Memorandum indicates that the coverage is 'bundled' ... but the 
Memorandum is not specific on that point . . . bundled coverage may exhibit 
different experience from non-bundled coverage ... 

Id. at 6-8 (A-521-523). The Commissioner's expert nowhere says that the rate for Loss of 

Income and Family Leave Insurance was reasonable. 

On a Credit Property Insurance filing, the Commissioner's expert said: 


This filing is complete to the extent that it [includes something] 


I could not verify the adjustment for 'average amount' or the average amount 

itself, but it seems reasonable 


There are adjustments for Adjustment from ACV to replacement cost, elimination 

of deductible and additional miscellaneous coverages for which justification was 

not provided. 


No justification was provided for other expense components 


No justification is provided for the Non-filing rates. 


if the coverage is non-standard, either an 'actuarial equivalence' to published rate 

must be established or a minimum anticipated loss ratio of 40-60% must be 
certified" [note: this never happened] 
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Id. at 8-9 (A-523-524) (emphasis supplied). Once again, the Commissioner's expert never said 

the rates from this filing were reasonable by any measure or standard. 

On another Credit Property filing, the Commissioner's expert continued in the 

same vein: 

It is complete to the extent that [it includes something] 

The filing was incomplete in that a program description was not provided, nor 
was the derivation ofthe proposed rate from the existing rate provided. 

Credibility of the experience was not considered. This may not be a material 

omISSIOn. 


A catastrophe margin was not considered. 


The derivation of the rate adjustment, the current rate and the indicated rate were 

omitted from the filing 

Id. at 10-11 (A-525-526). 

The entire Commissioner's expert report follows suit - nothing is complete. And the best 

the expert can do is guess that, perhaps, the omissions are not material (perhaps they are). But in 

many cases, the Report simply states that the information is not there and the expert actuary 

cannot, therefore, do any pertinent analysis. The Commissioner's expert never~ver-says the 

rates are reasonable. The closest stab to reasonableness is the Report's unsupported comment 

that CitiFinancial's rate filings "are very much in line" with other filings? Those filings, if they 

exist, are not in the administrative record. Nor was the expert available for cross examination to 

test the expert's assertion. But the Commissioner's "actuarial report" (which contains no 

actuarial analysis) ends with no conclusion other than a disclaimer that the expert only had some 

information, that others with "significant experience with these products" might disagree, and 

3 Even if true, the statement only begs the question Lightner will soon answer - i.e., was 
CitiFinancial conducting this scheme in other states as well. 
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that various factors affect loss ratios over time. On this record, the Report cannot support the 

Commissioner's action. 

With all of its shortcomings, this Report constitutes the only evidence cited in the 

Commissioner's Order or the Circuit Court Order. This expert was never sworn in. Never 

deposed. Never subject to any cross-examination or discovery. But, even without the crucible of 

an adversary proceeding, the Commissioner's Report melts into nothing on a single reading. 

The Commissioner Order attempts to re-write the statute and this Court's CitiFinancial 

decision, asserting that since the Insurance Commissioner did not put a rule into effect 

prohibiting the rates, CitiFinancial must be blameless and that unreasonable rates become 

reasonable if the Commissioner approves them so that carrier's may rely on improperly secured 

approvals. Commissioner's Order at Ij[ 31 (A-30-31). But the law says that unreasonable rates 

may not lawfully be charged, not only that unapproved rates may not be charged. See also, 

CitiFinancial at Syl. Pt. 4 (declaring that the presumption of reasonableness for approved rates 

may be rebutted). The Commissioner's Order demonstrates the Commissioner's unwillingness 

to enforce the Legislature's rule or this Court's syllabus on behalf of the citizens of West 

Virginia against the interests of its regulated parties. 

The Order claims the Commissioner did her job: "The Insurance Commissioner fulfilled 

her duty." Commission's Order at 5 (A-26). And the Order continues: "the Office of the 

Insurance Commissioner complied with the requirements of [§33-20-4(d)] and approved the 

filings." Id. (A-33). The Commissioner never adjudicated Lightner's claim; it never weighed 

facts against the law this Court established. The Commissioner's Order served only to exonerate 

the Insurance Commissioner for allowing so much money to be lifted from the pockets of hard

working West Virginians by declaring the money un-stolen as a matter of agency fiat. The 
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Commissioner's Order stands apart from any fair evaluation of what was supposed to be the 

question under CitiFinancial - whether these rates actually were reasonable rates and in 

accordance with the law or they were unreasonable rates that violate the WVCCP A. 

The facts actually in the record show the rates were unreasonable. In the Order 

exonerating CitiFinancial, the Insurance Commissioner disregarded evidence showing that the 

rates at issue were far in excess of any standard for reasonableness and cited no evidence 

whatsoever indicating reasonableness. For example, unlike the Commissioner's Office, the Rate 

Specialist Bureau of the California Department of Insurance concluded in an August 2002 report 

that Triton and other credit insurers were dramatically overcharging California insureds. After 

conducting a public study of credit property and credit unemployment insurance rates, those 

regulators reported that Triton had been ripping off consumers.

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