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

ARGUMENT 

I. Standard of Review 

"Upon judicial review of a contested case under this section, the circuit court may 

affinn the order or decision of the agency or remand the case for further proceedings. The 

circuit court shall reverse, vacate or modify the order or decision ofthe agency if the 

substantial rights of the petitioner or petitioners have been prejudiced because the 

administrative findings, inferences, conclusions, decisions or order are: (1) In violation of 

constitutional or statutory provisions; (2) in excess of the statutory authority or 

jurisdiction of the agency; (3) made upon unlawful procedures; (4) affected by other error 

oflaw; (5) clearly wrong in view of the reliable, probative and substantial evideI).ce on 

the whole record; or (6) arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or 

clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion." St. MalY's Hosp. v. State Health Planning & 

Dev. Agency, 178 W. Va. 792,364 S.E.2d 805 (1987) Frank's Shoe Store v. West 

Virginia Human Rights Comm 'n, 179 W. Va. 53, 365 S.E.2d 251 (1986) Gino's Pizza of 

W Hamlin, Inc. v. West Virginia Human Rights Comm 'n, 187 W. Va. 312, 418 S.E.2d 

758 (1992)Davis v. West Virginia Dep't a/Motor Vehicles, 187 W. Va. 402, 419 S.E.2d 

470 (1992) "On appeal of an administrative order from a circuit court, the supreme court 

is bound by the statutory standards set forth in this section and reviews questions of law 

presented de n01LO; findings of fact by the administrative officer are accorded deference 

unless the reviewing court believes the findings to be clearly wrong." Wheeling
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Pittsburgh Steel Corp. v. Rowing, 205 W. Va. 286, 517 S.E.2d 763 (1999) Genesis, Inc. 

v. Tax Comm'r, 215 W. Va. 266, 599 S.E.2d 689 (2004) Williams v. W Va. Bd. of 

Exam'rsfor Registered Profl Nurses, 215 W. Va. 237, 599 S.E.2d 660 (2004). 

As shown by the record and argument herein, the Commissioner has not violated 

any constitutional or statutory provision. The procedures used by the Commissioner were 

wholly lawful and within the parameters ofhis authority. Nothing that he has done in 

these matters is clearly wrong, affected by other error oflaw, arbitrary or capricious, and 

he has not abused his discretion but rather went above and beyond that required of his 

office. The Supreme Court of Appeals has decided many cases concerning review of 

administrative proceedings. There has been great deference given to administrative 

agencies in carrying out the policies and procedures of state government. "The 

commission's findings were sustained where its finding of discrimination was supported 

by substantial evidence and the circuit court exceeded the standard ofreview by 

substituting its judgment for that of the commission." Bloss & Dillard, Inc. v. West 

Virginia Human Rights Comm'n, 183 W. Va. 702,398 S.E.2d 528 (1990). 

"The "clearly wrong" and the "arbitrary and capricious" standards of review are 

deferential ones which presume an agency's actions are valid as long as the decision is 

supported by substantial evidence or by a rational basis." Stewart v. West Va. Bd. of 

Exmrs.for Registered Professional Nurses. 197 W. Va. 386,475 S.E.2d478 (1996). 

"Writ of prohibition was issued as a trial court exceeded its authority in reviewing 

contested cases under W. Va. Code § 29A-5-4 by essentially issuing a writ ofmandamus 

and requiring the Commissioner of the West Virginia Division ofMotor Vehicles to 

replace his procedural rules with new rules that were subject to the trial court's review; 
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just as W. Va. Code § 29A-5-4 did not authorize reliefby way of an extraordinary writ, 

neither did it authorize the trial court to sua sponte order what was essentially 

extraordinary relief in its final order disposing of an administrative appeal." State Ex Rei. 

Cicchirillo v. Alsop, 218 W. Va. 674, 629 S.E.2d 733 (2006). 

"W. Va. Code § 29A-5-4 and prior case law unambiguously indicate that W. Va. 

Code § 29A-5-4 does not vest circuit courts reviewing administrative appeals of 

contested cases with the authority to order an agency to cease a certain practice or to 

direct an agency to promulgate new procedural rules that are subject to the circuit court's 

review; rather, a circuit court's disposition of an administrative appeal is limited to 

affirming, remanding, reversing, vacating, or modifying the agency's disposition of a 

contested case." Id. 

Thus, in addition to the recent decision of CitiFinancial (citation omitted), there is 

a long list of cases granting deference to administrative bodies. 

II. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Err in Upholding the Order of the 
Insurance Commissioner Denying a Hearing as Serving No Useful 
Purpose and Petitioner Did Not Have an Automatic Right to an 
Administrative Hearing Nor Was Denied Due Process of Law 

It is the clear contention oftbe Insurance Commissioner that he legally handled 

this administrative complaint within the confines ofhis legal authority and did not resort 

to irregularities in procedure but invoked known and clear statutory guidelines in his 

resolution of tbis matter. 

The Appeal sub judice deals with a complex situation that affects mUltiple 

policyholders. The Petitioner in his administrative complaint was seeking to set aside 

multiple rate filings fIled some of which were nearly fourteen (14) years prior with 
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the Offices of the Insurance Commissioner. The relevant code sections concerning 

disapproval of rates are contained in W.Va. Code § 33-20-5 (1967) which reads as 

follows: 

§ 33-20-5. Disapproval of filings. 
(c) If at any time subsequent to the applicable review period provided for 
in subsection (a) or (b) of this section, the commissioner finds that a filing 
does not meet the requirements ofthis article, he shall, [Italics added] 
after notice and hearing to every insurer and rating organization which 
made such filing, issue an order specifying in what respects he finds that 
such filing fails to meet the requirements of this article, and stating when, 
within a reasonable period thereafter, such filing shall be deemed no 
longer effective. Copies of said order shall be sent to every such insurer 
and rating organization. Said order shall not affect any contract or policy 
made or issued prior to the expiration of the period set forth in said order. 
(d) Any person or organization aggrieved with respect to any filing which 
is in effect may demand a hearing thereon. If, after such hearing, the 
commissioner finds that the filing does not meet the requirements of this 
article, he shall issue an order specifying in what respects he finds that 
such filing fails to meet the requirements of this article, and stating when, 
within a reasonable period thereafter, such filing shall be deemed no 
longer effective. Said order shall not affect any contract or policy made or 
issued prior to the expiration of the period set forth in said order. 

Consequently, there is a precursor section involving the Commissioner's authority 

before the analysis begins in W.Va. Code §33-2-5(d) (1967). The Insurance 

Commissioner has several duties. In many contested cases, he may grant or deny hearings 

on matters and act as a quasi-judicial tribunal. See W.Va. Code §33-11-4a, W.Va. Code 

§33-2-13, W.Va. Code St. R. §114-76-1, et seq. and W.Va. Code S1. R. §114-13-1, et seq. 

In other enforcement matters, he is the direct prosecutor of potential civil violations of 

code among many of his offices such as in the findings from a market conduct or 

financial examination. See W.Va. Code §33-2-9. The Commissioner also has authority 

to coordinate with state prosecuting attorneys and U.S. Attorneys to prosecute instances 

of insurance fraud. See W.Va. Code §33-41-1, et seq. 

17 



It is the position of the Insurance Commissioner that once an administrative 

complaint that has broad perspective has been thoroughly investigated or examined by his 

Office, a W.Va. Code §33-2-5(d) (1967) administrative hearing generally may not serve a 

useful purpose as he may take direct action against the entity or deny the same as having 

no merit within the parameters ofhis authority. Allowing consumers and respondents to 

argue such broader market issues would in essence be "abdicating" the Commissioner's 

responsibility. The understanding of the insurance market as a whole, a broad 

understanding of rate and foml issues, the expertise of the staff of the Commissioner's 

Office and the public policy ramifications of such issues calls for the Commissioner's 

determination of these matters and not simply leave disposition to the parties to sort out. 

This Court detennined in State ex ref. CitiFinancial v. Madden that "the 

Legislature did not authorize the circuit courts to invade the jurisdiction of the Insurance 

Commissioner and conduct a re-examination of insurance rates previously approved by 

the Commissioner. State ofWest Virginia Ex Rei. CitiFinancial, Inc. v. The Honorable 

John T Madden, Judge o/the Circuit Court ofMarshall County and Paul Lightner, 223 

W.Va. 229, 672 S.E.2d 365 (2008). 

Further, this Court stated that, "[i]t stands to reason that if a circuit court is 

allowed to invade this administrative arena and reexamine the issue of whether a given 

insurance rate is reasonable or excessive, the judiciary will necessarily be substituting its 

detenninations as to the permissible insurance rates for those previously determined by 

the Commissioner and supplanting its opinion in matters -expressly delegated to the 

Commissioner's expertise and jurisdiction." Id. at 237,373. This Court additionally 

discussed, "[ aJ further peril that cannot be overlooked is that judicial intervention in the 
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rate making area would open the door to conflicting decisions amongst the various 

circuits regarding what constitutes an unreasonable or excessive charge for credit 

insurance. In this matter then, the uniformity of regulation that the Legislature has 

established by delegating all matters involving rate making and rate filings to the 

Commissioner is certain to be infringed if circuit courts or jurors are permitted to second 

guess the reasonableness of rates previously approved by the Commissioner." Id. 

Therefore, the West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals has in fact posited this 

authority with the Insurance Commissioner as previously bestowed by the Legislature. 

The Commissioner has continually fulfilled his duties within the parameters of the 

referenced code sections and his findings and Order are consistent with the ruling 

referenced in CitiFinancial v. Madden. Id. Further, as this Court has stated, the matter 

must be "raised" with the Insurance Commissioner which is precisely what the Petitioner 

did in this instance and the Commissioner acted accordingly. Id. Obviously, the Petitioner 

does not agree with the Commissioner's rate approval in this matter. 

While Petitioner points to W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) (1967) as being dispositive of 

the issues in this matter, an analysis must be completed ofthe entire section inpari 

materia. "Statutes which relate to the same subject matter should be read and applied 

together so that the Legislature's intention can be gathered from the whole of the 

enactments." Syllabus Point 3, Smith v. State Workmen's Compensation Comm'r, 159 W. 

Va. 108,219 S.E.2d 361 (1975). "Statutes which relate to the same persons or things, or 

to the same class ofpersons or things, or statutes which have a common purpose will be 

regarded in pari materia to assure recognition and implementation of the legislative 

intent. Accordingly, a court should not limit its consideration to any single part, 
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provision, section, sentence, phrase or word, but rather review the act or statute in its 

entirety to ascertain legislative intent properly." Syllabus Point 5, FreuhaufCorp. v. 

Huntington Moving and Storage Co., 159 W. Va. 14,217 S.E.2d 907 (1975). A 

precursor section to W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) (1967), is inevitably W.Va. Code §33-20-5 

(c) (1967). W.Va. Code §33-20-5(c) (1967) states in its entirety the following: 

(c) If at any time subsequent to the applicable review period provided for 
in subsection (a) or (b) of this section, the commissioner finds that a filing 
does not meet the requirement? of this article, he shall, after notice and 
hearing to every insurer and rating organization which made such filing, 
issue an order specifying in what respects he finds that such filing fails to 
meet the requirements of this article, and stating when, within a reasonable 
period thereafter, such filing shall be deemed no longer effective. Copies 
of said order shall be sent to every such insurer and rating organization. 
Said order shall not affect any contract or policy made or issued prior to 
the expiration of the period set forth in said order. 

Consequently, it is contemplated within the section that the Insurance 

Commissioner has authority, on his own, to review filings and determine if a particular 

filing is not within the applicable statutory directives ofWest Virginia law as well as case 

law interpreting the same. It has been the policy of the Commissioner to make sure that 

any rate or form issue is corrected such that all policyholders and consumers in West 

Virginia are in fact protected. Therefore, the result sought to be obtained in a hearing 

under W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) (1967) might lead to an incomplete, inconsistent and/or 

unfair result for the entire marketplace or leave other consumers or policyholders 

unresolved concerning their affairs. Consequently, one must get past an analysis in W.Va. 

Code §33-20-5(c) (1967) before ever needing to proceed with W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) 

(1967). The Commissioner as discussed later herein this Briefperf-onned his statutory 

duty on two separate occasions. The rates were in fact reviewed when filed. (A. 577

1131). Further, the Commissioner upon the filing of the Petitioner's Administrative 
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Complaint undertook a second evaluation of the rates in light of subsequent statutory 

changes and other legal precedent including the referenced CitiFinancial v. Madden 

decision. State of West Virginia Ex ReI. CitiFinancial, Inc. v. The Honorable John T 

Madden, Judge ofthe Circuit Court ofMarshall County and Paul Lightner, 223 W.Va. 

229, 672 S.E.2d 365 (2008). 

It would appear to be an unwarranted consequence of the statutory scheme passed 

by the West Virginia Legislature and the CitiFinancial (citation omitted) decision, to 

hold a hearing that would only involve a rate en'or between two private parties when the 

benefit of said hearing may only inure to those litigants and completely disregard the 

remaining consumers and policyholders in the State ofWest Virginia. When said analysis 

is performed and if undertaken in a comprehensive fashion and should the Commissioner 

not find evidence or facts that would lead him to take action on his own which he legally 

can do, it would appear that there would have to be sufficient evidence put forth to make 

any hearing in the matter useful or otherwise be a total waste ofjudicial economy and 

taxpayer funds. Consequently, a more reasoned approach to W.Va. Code §33-20-5 

(1967) analysis would be that were the Commissioner to fail to perform a W.Va. Code 

§33-20-5(c) (1967) exam and/or analysis or in a particular matter take no position on it, 

then W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) (1967) would in fact be a "backstop" for a single 

complainant to bring the issue to the attention of the Commissioner. However, it would 

appear since the complexity of the issues and the expertise involved, the Commissioner 

should handle such matters per State ofWest Virginia Ex Ref. CitiFinancial, Inc. v. The 

Honorable John T Madden, Judge ofthe Circuit Court ofMarshall County and Paul 

Lightner, 223 W.Va. 229, 672 S.E.2d 365 (2008) rendering a W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) 
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hearing moot. A regulator has to have discretion in handling of its regulatory affairs. 

"After all, the decision whether to proceed by ruleJ;Ilaking or adjudication lies within the 

agency's discretion [Emphasis added], and the Legislature imposed few restraints on the 

exercise of this discretion. In short, we are faced with an explicit delegation of authority 

without clear legislative guidance. In the absence of a persuasive argument the legislative 

rule is arbitrary and capricious, we defer to the regulation and HCCRA's application of 

it." West Virginia Health Care Cost Review Auth. v. Boone Mem. Hasp., 196 W. Va. 326, 

339,472 S.E.2d 411,424 (1996). 

Another consideration is the W.Va. Code §33-20-5(d) (1967) requirements are 

dealing with rate violations where a rate not properly filed nor approved or a rate 

properly filed and approved but not used by a company occurs. In those instances, the 

facts of the particular policyholder situation may be relevant to ascertain in a hearing 

whether a specific violation of the Code has occurred. However, in this instance there are 

absolutely no factual allegations that the Petitioner was charged a rate in excess of any 

rate so approved by the Insurance Commissioner. Therefore, again the Commissioner has 

exercised his lawful authority and the Petitioner is seeking relief from the Circuit Court in 

direct contravention of State ofWest Virgin.ia Ex Ref. CitiFinancial, Inc. v. The

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